
Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
Tulsa County Board of Adjustment  

Special Meeting 
Tuesday May 31, 2022, 1:30 p.m. 

Williams Tower I 
1 West 3rd Street, St. Francis Room 

 
Meeting No. 507 

 
 

INTRODUCTION AND NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
At this Meeting the Board of Adjustment, in accord with and pursuant to applicable Board of 
Adjustment Policies and Procedures, will review, consider, discuss, and may take action on, 
approve, amend, modify, approve with amendment(s) or modification(s), deny, reject, or defer 
any action on any item listed on this Agenda. 
 
Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the 
following: 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of April 19, 2022 (Meeting No. 506). 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

2. 2960 - Wake Wireless 
Special Exception to permit a 150 ft. Wireless Communications Tower (Use Unit 4 - 
Public Protection and Utility Facilities) in an AG district (Section 1204.3); a Special 
Exception to reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower height) from 165' to 
10' 8" from the adjoining residential lot and from 165' to 92' from the adjoining 
agricultural lot (Section 1204.3C.7.a); and a Special Exception to allow an alternative 
design rather than a monopole communication tower design to be located within 300 feet 
of an R district boundary (Section 1204.3.C.2.b). LOCATION: South of the southeast 
corner of East 146th Street North and North Yale Avenue 

 
 
 

NEW APPLICATIONS 
 
Review and possible approval, approval with modifications, denial, or deferral of the 
following: 
 

3. 2963 - Talia Zapata 
Special Exception to permit a single-wide mobile home in an RS district (Section 410). 
LOCATION: 820 North Ridge Drive West 

 
4. 2964 - Samuel Feldhake 

Variance to permit a detached accessory building in the side yard in an RE district 
(Section 420.2-A.2). LOCATION: 8231 North 70th Avenue East 

 



Page 2 of 2 

5. 2965 - Nathalie Cornett 
Use Variance to permit a heavy construction contract service (Use Unit 25) in the CS 
district. (Section 710); Variance to permit gravel unenclosed off-street parking (Section 
1340); Variance to permit gravel loading areas (Section 1350). LOCATION: 2106 South 
59th Avenue West 

 
6. 2966 - Nathan Cross 

Use Variance to permit Use Unit 5 (Community Services and Similar Uses) to allow an 
Emergency and Protective Shelter to allow temporary (up to 8 months) housing and 
sponsor placement services for unaccompanied displaced minors in an IM district 
(Section 1205). LOCATION: 6929 North Lakewood Avenue East 

 
7. 2967 - Annette Belmonte 

Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit requirement from 2.1 and the 
minimum lot area requirement from 2 acres in an AG district; and a Variance of the 
minimum lot width requirement from 150 feet in an AG district to permit a lot split 
(Section 330). LOCATION: 17505 South 145th Avenue East 

 
8. 2968 - Mickey Traylor 

Special Exception to allow a duplex in an RS district (Sec. 410, Table 1); Variance to 
allow three dwelling units on a single lot of record in the RS district (Sec. 208); and a 
Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
LOCATION: 7107 North Trenton Avenue East 

 
9. 2972 - Sherry Barbour 

Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use Unit 2) in an RS district (Section 
410); Variance of the all-weather parking surface requirement (Sec.1340.D). 
LOCATION: 524 North 49th Avenue West 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Website: tulsaplanning.org  E-mail: esubmit@incog.org 
 

If you require special accommodations pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, please call 918-
584-7526. 
 

NOTE: Exhibits, Petitions, Pictures, etc., presented to the Board of Adjustment may be received and 
deposited in case files to be maintained at the Tulsa Planning Office at INCOG. All electronic devices 
must be silenced during the Board of Adjustment meeting. 
NOTE: This agenda is for informational purposes only and is not an official posting. Please contact the 
Tulsa Planning Office at 918-584-7526 if you require an official posted agenda. 

mailto:tulsaplanning.org
mailto:esubmit@incog.org


 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2960 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Wake Wireless    
 
Property Owner: CONTREREAS, 
PATRICIA & RODOLFO 
 

 
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a 150 ft. Wireless Communications 
Tower (Use Unit 4 - Public Protection and Utility Facilities) in an AG district (Section 
1204.3); Special Exception to reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower 
height) from 165' to 10' 8" from the adjoining Residential lot and from 165' to 92' 
from the adjoining agricultural lot (Section 1204.3C.7.a); and a Special Exception to 
allow an alternative design rather than a monopole communication tower design to 
be located within 300 feet of an R district boundary (Section 1204.3.C.2.b). 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Agricultural    
 
Tract Size: 10.35 acres 
 
Location: South of the southeast corner 
of East 146th Street North and North 
Yale Avenue 
 
Present Zoning: AG 
 
Fenceline/Area: Collinsville 
 
Land Use Designation: Residential 
 
 
 

CBOA-2960     2.1



PUD-683

AG

RE

RE

CG

RE

CH

AG AG

CS

CG

IL

AG

£¤75

£¤75

£¤75

!(20

N 
YA

LE
 A

VE

E 136th ST N

E 146th St N

E 144 ST N

N 
54

 E
 AV

E

E 145 ST N

E 142 PL N

E 141 PL N

E 142 ST N

N 
55

 E
 AV

E

E 135 PL N

N
58 EAVE

N
56

EA
VE

N 
57

 E
 AV

E

E 142 ST N

N
55

E A
V E

22-13 27
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2960

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Collinsville Corporate Limits

Skiatook Corporate Limits

CBOA-2960     2.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

TRS:  2327 CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2960 
CZM:  7 CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  

HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

APPLICANT:  Wake Wireless  

ACTION REQUESTED:  Special Exception to permit a 150 ft. Wireless Communications Tower (Use Unit 4 - 
Public Protection and Utility Facilities) in an AG district (Section 1204.3); Special Exception to reduce the 
required tower setback (110% of the tower height) from 165' to 10' 8" from the adjoining Residential lot 
and from 165' to 92' from the adjoining agricultural lot (Section 1204.3C.7.a); and a Special Exception to 
allow an alternative design rather than a monopole communication tower design to be located within 300 
feet of an R district boundary (Section 1204.3.C.2.b). 

LOCATION:  South of the southeast corner of East 146th Street North and North Yale Avenue 

ZONED:  AG 

FENCELINE: Collinsville 

PRESENT USE: Agricultural      TRACT SIZE:  10.35 acres 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  BEG 70S NWC SW TH E285 N70 E1035.37 S360.35 W1320.15 N290.35 POB 
LESS W16.5 FOR RD SEC 27 22 13  10.35ACS, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None relevant 

ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract abuts AG zoning to the north and south. The 
property to the north was approved for a Wedding and Event Venue in 2021 and the property to the south 
appears to be vacant. Highway 75 is west of the subject tract and the property to the east is zoned RE. 

NEW STAFF COMMENTS: 

The case was continued from 04/19/2022 to 05/31/2022 in order to re-notice the case with an 
additional request. The applicant is also seeking a Special Exception to allow an alternative design 
rather than a monopole communication tower design to be located within 300 feet of an R district 
boundary (Section 1204.3.C.2.b). 

Code requires the following: (Section 1204.3.C.2.b) Communication towers if located within an 
R District or if located within 300 feet of an R district boundary line shall be of a monopole 
design, unless the Board of Adjustment determines by special exception that an alternative 
design would adequately blend into the surrounding environment, or that the required 
antennas cannot be supported by a monopole.  

According to the documents submitted by the applicant, the design is a 150 foot Self Supporting 
Tower in a lattice design. The Board must determine if the alternative design will adequately blend 
into the surrounding environment, or that the required antennas cannot be supported by a 
monopole. 

CBOA-2960     2.3



ORIGINAL STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Special Exception to permit a 150 ft. Wireless 
Communications Tower (Use Unit 4 - Public Protection and Utility Facilities) in an AG district (Section 
1204.3); and a Special Exception to reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower height) 
from 165' to 10' 8" from the adjoining residential lot and from 165' to 92' from the adjoining 
agricultural lot (Section 1204.3C.7.a). 
 
Communications towers are classified under Use Unit 4, Public Protection and Utility Facilities, and 
are permitted in the AG district by Special Exception.  A Special Exception is required as the 
proposed cell tower is a use which is not permitted by right in the AG district because of potential 
adverse effects, but if controlled in the particular instance as to its relationship to the area, may be 
permitted.   
 
The applicant has included a site plan. The proposed monopole tower has a height of 150 feet. 
Zoning Code requires towers to be set back a distance equal to at least on hundred ten percent 
(110%) of the height of the tower from any adjoining lot line of a residential, office or agricultural 
zoned lot.  

• The distance from the proposed cell tower to the adjoining RE lot line is 10 feet 8 
inches. The requirement would be 165 feet so the applicant is requesting a Special 
Exception to reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower height) from the 
adjoining RE zoned district from 165 feet to 10 feet 8 inches.  
 

• The distance from the proposed cell tower to the adjoining AG lot line is 92 feet. The 
requirement would be 165 feet so the applicant is requesting a Special Exception to 
reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower height) from the adjoining AG 
zoned district from 165 feet to 92 feet. 
 

• The distances to the north and west meet the setback requirements.  
 
Section 1204.3.C & E of the Code provides general standards for locating communication towers in 
any district.  Some of the more notable requirements include: 
 

1204.3.C.2.a: Towers and antennas shall be designed to blend into the surrounding 
environment through the use of color, galvanizing, or camouflaging architectural treatment, 
except in instances where the color is dictated by federal or state authorities such as the 
FAA. 
 
1204.3.C.4.: Towers shall not be illuminated by artificial means and shall not display strobe 
lights unless such lighting is specifically required by the FAA or other federal or state 
authority for a particular tower.  When incorporated into the approved design of the tower, 
light fixtures used to illuminate ball fields, parking lots, or similar areas may be attached to 
the tower. 

 
1204.3.C.6: All utility buildings and structures accessory to a tower shall meet all the 
requirements of the underlying zoning district. Exterior ground mounted equipment 
occupying more than 50 square feet, if visible from ground level, shall be screened from 
view from property within 150 ft. used for residential purposes. 

 
1204.3.C.7.a:  Towers must be set back a distance equal to at least one hundred ten 
percent (110%) of the height of the tower from any adjoining lot line of a residential, office, 
or agricultural zoned lot, excluding expressway rights of way zoned residential.   

CBOA-2960     2.4



 
1204.3.C.8:  Towers shall be enclosed by security fencing not less than six (6) feet in height 
or shall be equipped with an appropriate anti-climbing device; provided however the Board 
may modify of waive the requirements by special exception 

 
Additionally, Section 1204.3.E.1 provides the following: 
 

Factors to be considered in granting a special exception.  In addition to any other 
requirement of this section, the following factors shall be considered in the determination to 
grant or deny a special exception for an antenna or tower: 
a. Height of the proposed tower  
b. Proximity of the tower to residential structures, residential district    boundaries and 

existing towers 
c. Nature of uses on adjacent and nearby properties 
d. Surrounding topography 
e. Surrounding tree coverage and foliage 
f. Design of the tower, with particular reference to design characteristics that have the effect 

of reducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness 
g. The total number and size of antennas proposed and the ability of the proposed tower to 

accommodate collocation 
h. Architectural design of utility buildings and accessory structures to blend with the 

surrounding environment 
i. Proposed ingress and egress 
j. The need of the applicant for a communications tower within the immediate geographic 

area to provide an acceptable level of communications service to the area 
k. The size of the tract and the most likely future development as indicated by the 

Comprehensive Plan, planned infrastructure, topography and other physical facts. 
l. Landscaping 

 
1204.3.E.2 - Collocation of facilities should be encouraged wherever practical by allowing 
reasonable extra height or tower diameter necessary to support multiple antennas. 

 
1204.3.E.3 - The findings of the Board of Adjustment as to each of these factors shall be 
made on the record and contained in the written minutes of the meeting. 
 

If inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure the proposed communications tower will be non-injurious to the 
surrounding area.   

 
Sample Motion: 
 

“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a 150 ft. Wireless 
Communications Tower (Use Unit 4 - Public Protection and Utility Facilities) in an AG district 
(Section 1204.3); Special Exception to reduce the required tower setback (110% of the tower 
height) from 165' to 10' 8" from the adjoining Residential lot and from 165' to 92' from the 
adjoining agricultural lot (Section 1204.3C.7.a); and a Special Exception to allow an alternative 
design rather than a monopole communication tower design to be located within 300 feet of an R 
district boundary (Section 1204.3.C.2.b). 
 
Read the following statement so it can be on record and recorded in the minutes of the meeting. 
 

CBOA-2960     2.5



The Board considered each of the following stated factors in Section 1204.3.E. 1 & 2 of the Code 
and finds that the application complies / does not comply with the requirements to the Boards 
satisfaction. 
 
Section 1204.3.E provides the following: 
 
1. Factors to be considered in granting a special exception. In addition to any other requirement 

of this section, the following factors shall be considered in the determination to grant or deny a 
special exception for an antenna or tower: 

 
a. Height of the proposed tower 
b. Proximity of the tower to residential structures, residential district boundaries and 

existing towers 
c. Nature of uses on adjacent and nearby properties 
d. Surrounding topography 
e. Surrounding tree coverage and foliage 
f. Design of the tower, with particular reference to design characteristics that have the 

effect of reducing or eliminating visual obtrusiveness 
g. The total number and size of antennas proposed and the ability of the proposed 

tower to accommodate collocation 
h. Architectural design of utility buildings and accessory structures to blend with the 

surrounding environment 
i. Proposed ingress and egress 
j. The need of the applicant for a communications tower within the immediate 

geographic area to provide an acceptable level of communications service to the 
area 

k. The size of the tract and the most likely future development as indicated by the 
Comprehensive Plan, planned infrastructure, topography and other physical facts. 

l. Landscaping 
 

2. Collocation of facilities should be encouraged wherever practical by allowing reasonable 
extra height or tower diameter necessary to support multiple antennas. 

 
Approved per conceptual plan(s) on page(s) _______ of the agenda packet.  

 
Subject to the following conditions (if any): __________. 
 
Finding the Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will not 
be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 
 
 
 

CBOA-2960     2.6



£¤75

£¤75

£¤75

!(20

N 
YA

LE
 A

VE

E 136th ST N

E 146th St N

E 144 ST N

N 
54

 E
 AV

E

E 145 ST N

E 142 PL N

E 141 PL N

E 142 ST N

N 
55

 E
 AV

E

E 135 PL N

N
58 EAVE

N
56

EA
VE

N 
57

 E
 AV

E

E 142 ST N

N
55

E A
V E

22-13 27
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2960 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021
Subject
Tract

CBOA-2960     2.7



£¤75

£¤75

£¤75

!(20

N 
YA

LE
 A

VE

E 136th ST N

E 146th St N

E 144 ST N

N 
54

 E
 AV

E

E 145 ST N

E 142 PL N

E 141 PL N

E 142 ST N

N 
55

 E
 AV

E

E 135 PL N

N
58 EAVE

N
56

EA
VE

N 
57

 E
 AV

E

E 142 ST N

N
55

E A
V E

22-13 27
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2960

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN
RESIDENTIAL

LEGEND
Collinsville
Land Use Plan

Agriculture

Residential

Office

Commercial

Industrial

Public and Quasi Public

Recreation and Open Space

CBOA-2960     2.8



EH

E
7¿

ffi

rc

ffi
\

t-!
lI

ffi

n

EII

E
H

H

CBOA-2960     2.9



---¿
ilE

T
C

N

fi
É

gË5

CBOA-2960     2.10



1s
r

.6
25

sr

B W
el

de
d 

S
ec

tio
ns

1.
25

sr
1 

.S
sr

1.
5 

L

5

B
ol

te
d 

T
ow

er
 S

ec
tio

ns

1 
.7

5s
r

1.
5 

L

3

Le
gs

B
ra

ce
s

B
ay

s

D
es

ig
n

(,
,

q

À q

J o
>

o
õN E
J f¡
¡ 

-
5J

-
-o

É
o=

.
^æ

(¡
)
o \\ N

('l æ o I s s (¡ I o, J o) J

o) N N o t\)

(¡ q U
,

q- Ø c !, E o ¿ ã (o -{ o É o -

=
ã

"s
ä

oã âF

CBOA-2960     2.11



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2963 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Talia Zapata   
 
Property Owner: ZAPATA, TALIA 
 

 
Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a single-wide mobile home in an RS 
district (Section 410). 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential     
 
Tract Size: 0.39 acres 
 
Location: 820 N RIDGE DR W 
 
Present Zoning: RS 
 
Fenceline/Area: Sand Springs 
 
Land Use Designation: Residential 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CBOA-2963     3.1



£¤412

!(97

PUD-87

PUD-37
RS

AG

RS

RS-3

AG

AG

RS-3

RS

RS-1

RS-2

CG

IL

RD

OM

CS
RM-2

RD

RM-2

RM-2

RM-2

N 
FR

AN
KL

IN
 A

VE

W WEKIWA RD

W 10th ST
VA

LL
EY

 D
R

W 4TH ST N

N R
IDG

E D
R

N 
GR

AN
T A

VE
W 6TH ST N

N 
TE

RR
AC

E 
DR

N 
LO

OP
 D

R

W 11TH ST

W 5TH ST

W 4TH ST

W 6TH ST

W 8TH ST
W 8TH ST N

W 9TH ST

W 7TH ST

N 
IN

DU
ST

RI
AL

 AV
E

N 
SL

OA
N 

AV
E

N 
RI

DG
E D

R

19-11 03
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2963

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Sand Springs Corporate Limits

CBOA-2963     3.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  9103                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2963 
CZM:  76             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Talia Zapata 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Special Exception to permit a single-wide mobile home in an RS district (Section 
410). 
 
LOCATION:  820 N RIDGE DR W      ZONED:  RS 
 
FENCELINE: Sand Springs 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential       TRACT SIZE:  0.39 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LT 9 BLK 11, CHARLES PAGE HOME ACRES NO 2 RESUB OF PRT RESUB B10-12, 
Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None relevant 
 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by RS zoning and residential uses. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board to request a Special Exception to permit a single-wide mobile 
home in an RS district (Section 410).  A special exception is required as the proposed mobile home 
is a use which is not permitted by right in the RS district because of potential adverse effects, but 
which if controlled in the particular instance as to its relationship to the neighborhood and to the 
general welfare, may be permitted.  The mobile home must be found to be compatible with the 
surrounding neighborhood.   
 
According to the site plan, the applicant is proposing to place a 65’ x 13.9’ mobile home in the 
center of the property.  
 
The applicant provided the following statement: 

1. Hardship – the property will be unlivable if the home has to be removed. 
2. This property has been unlivable for years unlike surrounding properties. 
3. If granted, the mobile home will not cause detriment to the public good; it would 

rather enhance the neighborhood and add an additional family residence. 
 

If inclined to approve the request the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary in order 
to ensure that the proposed mobile home is compatible and non-injurious to the surrounding area.   

 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a single-wide mobile home in an 
RS district (Section 410). 

CBOA-2963     3.3



 
Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet. 
 
Subject to the following conditions, if any: _______________________________. 
 
In granting a Special Exception, the Board must find that the Special Exception will be in harmony 
with the spirit and intent of the Code and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise 
detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
 

CBOA-2963     3.4



£¤412

!(97

W 8TH ST

N 
FR

AN
KL

IN
 A

VE

W WEKIWA RD

W 10th ST
VA

LL
EY

 D
R

W 4TH ST N

N R
IDG

E D
R

N 
GR

AN
T A

VE
W 6TH ST N

N 
TE

RR
AC

E 
DR

N 
LO

OP
 D

R

W 11TH ST

W 5TH ST

W 4TH ST

W 6TH ST

W 8TH ST

W 9TH ST

W 7TH ST

N 
IN

DU
ST

RI
AL

 AV
E

N 
SL

OA
N 

AV
E

N 
RI

DG
E D

R

19-11 03
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2963 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2963     3.5



W 10th ST
N R

IDG
E D

RN 
SL

OA
N 

AV
E

19-11 03
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2963 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2963     3.6



 

CBOA-2963     3.7



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2964 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Samuel Feldhake   
 
Property Owner: FELDHAKE, SAMUEL D 
& KELLEY N 
 

 
Action Requested: Variance to permit a detached accessory building in the side yard in 
the RE district (Section 420.2.A.2) 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
 

Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 0.73 acres 
 
Location: 8231 N 70 AV E 
 
Present Zoning: RE 
 
Fenceline/Area: Owasso 
 
Land Use Designation: Residential 
 
 
 

CBOA-2964     4.1



RE

AG

RE

RS-3

RS

AG

AG

AG

PF

RS-2

AG

RE

E 86th ST N

N 
SH

ER
ID

AN
 R

D

E 85TH ST N

N 
72

ND
 E

 AV
E

E 86TH PL N

E 88TH ST N

E 81ST ST N

E 83RD ST N

N 
74

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
71

ST
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
75

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
66

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 70
TH

 E AVE

N 
76

TH
 E 

PLN 
73

RD
 E

 PL

N 
67

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 68
TH

 PL E

E 80TH ST N

E 81ST PL N

E 83RD PL N

E 82ND PL N

E 87TH ST N

N 
68

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 87TH PL N

E 82ND ST N

N 
65

TH
 PL

 E

N 69
TH

 E AVE

E 84TH ST N

N 
76

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
67

TH
 PL

 E

N 
69

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
72

ND
 E

 AV
E

N 
66

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
67

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
70

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 83RD ST N

N 
71

ST
 E 

AV
E

E 84TH ST N

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
75

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 88TH ST N

E 83RD ST N

E 87TH ST N

21-13 26
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2964

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Owasso Corporate Limits

Tulsa Corporate Limits

CBOA-2964     4.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  1326                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2964 
CZM:  17             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Samuel Feldhake 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Variance to permit a detached accessory building in the side yard in the RE district 
(Section 420.2.A.2) 
 
LOCATION:  8231 N 70 AV E      ZONED:  RE 
 
FENCELINE: Owasso 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  0.73 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LOT 12 BLOCK 3, CROSSING AT 86TH STREET PHASE IV, Tulsa County, State of 
Oklahoma 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  
 
Subject Property: None relevant 

Surrounding Property: 
 
CBOA-2318 April 2009:  The Board approved a Variance to permit a detached accessory building in 
the side yard in a RE district, on property located at 8251 North 70th East Avenue.  

 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by RE zoning and is located in a 
residential neighborhood. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board to request a Variance to permit a detached accessory building in 
the side yard in the RE district (Section 420.2.A.2) 
 
According to the site plan, the applicant intends to construct an 18’ x 36’ (648 sq. ft.) accessory 
building (detached garage) in the side yard, southwest of the existing house on the site. Section 
420.2 states that a detached accessory building shall not be located in the front or side yard or 
encroach upon a minimum building setback line. The minimum building side setback line in an RE 
district is 15 feet and according to the site plan, the accessory building meets the required 15 feet. 
 
The applicant provided the statement: “Slope of backyard won’t support location and add more 
concrete for driveway to back would be unsightly. Building small open breezeway won’t look good. 
Would cover windows, AC, or septic. Two other homes in neighborhood have detached garages 
similar to my request.” 
 
 

CBOA-2964     4.3



 
 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to allow a detached accessory building to be 
located in the side yard in an RE district. (Section 420.2.A-2) 
 
Subject to the following conditions (if any): _________________________. 
 
Subject to the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) _____ of the agenda packet. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar 
to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan.” 
 

 

CBOA-2964     4.4



E 86th ST N

N 
SH

ER
ID

AN
 R

D

E 85TH ST N

N 
72

ND
 E

 AV
E

E 86TH PL N

E 88TH ST N

E 81ST ST N

E 83RD ST N

N 
74

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
71

ST
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
75

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
66

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 70
TH

 E AVE

N 
76

TH
 E 

PLN 
73

RD
 E

 PL

N 
67

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 68
TH

 PL E

E 80TH ST N

E 81ST PL N

E 83RD PL N

E 82ND PL N

E 87TH ST N

N 
68

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 87TH PL N

E 82ND ST N

N 
65

TH
 PL

 E

N 69
TH

 E AVE

E 84TH ST N

N 
76

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
67

TH
 PL

 E

N 
69

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
72

ND
 E

 AV
E

N 
66

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
67

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
70

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 83RD ST N

N 
71

ST
 E 

AV
E

E 84TH ST N

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
77

TH
 E 

AV
E

N 
75

TH
 E 

AV
E

E 88TH ST N

E 83RD ST N

E 87TH ST N

21-13 26
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2964 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2964     4.5



N 
72

ND
 E 

AV
E

N 70
TH E AVE

21-13 26
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2964 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2964     4.6



SITE PLAN

o
.t
5¡

à
\o.

tE -0'

b.

t5'-o'

s.

ntt'
\\

b
-tg

60 -7'

t'

o
o

Ld

f
L

20, LINE

184.39' PROP. LINE

-t

I

ùsl

SCALE: 1"= 30'

oLl.
yd

L¡Jz
=
o-o
É
o-

Nr\
rj
N

EXISTING CONC.
DRI\E

Lrl
z.

=
o-o
É.
o_

b,
|.r)

ñ

dzoOu,")
=É.=ôvtx
lrl

ì'I

CURB LINE

CBOA-2964     4.7



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2965 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Nathalie Cornett   
 
Property Owner: MULCARE, KIMBERLY D 
REVOCABLE TRUST 
 

 
Action Requested: Use Variance to permit a heavy construction contract service (Use 
Unit 25) in the CS district. (Section 710); Variance to pemit gravel unenclosed off-
street parking (Section 1340); Variance to permit gravel loading areas (Section 
1350)  
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Light Industrial    
 
Tract Size: 0.81 acres 
 
Location: 2106 S 59 AV W 
 
Present Zoning: CS 
 
Fenceline/Area: Berryhill 
 
Land Use Designation: Neighborhood 
Center 
 
 
 

 

CBOA-2965     5.1



RS

IH

IL

IM

AG

RS

RS

RS-3

CS CS

AG

AVERY DR

W 21st ST S

W 21
st 

PL

W 22nd ST S

W 23RD ST S

W 25TH ST S

S 5
9T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 5
7T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 6
3R

D 
W 

AV
E

S 6
1S

T W
 AV

E

W 24TH ST S

W 22ND ST S

19-12 17
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2965

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Tulsa Corporate Limits

CBOA-2965     5.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  9217                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2965 
CZM:  35             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Nathalie Cornett 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Use Variance to permit a heavy construction contract service (Use Unit 25) in the 
CS district. (Section 710); Variance to permit gravel unenclosed off-street parking (Section 1340); Variance 
to permit gravel loading areas (Section 1350)  
 
LOCATION:  2106 S 59 AV W      ZONED:  CS 
 
AREA: Berryhill 
 
PRESENT USE: Light Industrial      TRACT SIZE:  0.81 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  LT 1 BLK 8, SECOND WEST TULSA VIEW ACRES SUB, Tulsa County, State of 
Oklahoma 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None relevant 
 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract abuts CS zoning on the east and west. It about RS 
zoning to the south and IM zoning to the north. Uses to the south are mainly residential while uses to the 
north, east, and west appear to be a mixture of commercial and industrial. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Use Variance to permit a heavy construction 
contract service (Use Unit 25) in the CS district. (Section 710); Variance to permit gravel 
unenclosed off-street parking (Section 1340); Variance to permit gravel loading areas (Section 
1350) 
 
The applicant supplied the attached statement: See Exhibit “A”. 

 
A Use Variance for Use Unit 25, Light Manufacturing Industry, is being requested so the applicant, a 
mechanical construction contractor, can operate his business which offers commercial and 
industrial HVAC services for industrial, commercial, and civic projects. Use Unit 25 is not a use 
allowed by right or by Special Exception in an AG district.  
 
Section 1225.1 describes Light Manufacturing Industry:  
 

Light manufacturing and industrial uses having slight or no objectionable environmental 
influences by reason of the emission of odor, heat, smoke, noise, or vibration. The following 
use conditions will apply: 

 
1225.3 Use Conditions 
 

CBOA-2965     5.3



A. The uses included in Use Unit 25, which are located within 300 feet of an R District, 
shall be conducted within enclosed buildings. The subject property is located within 
300’ of an R District. 

 
B. The uses included in Use Unit 25, when located on a lot which is abutting an R 

District, shall be screened from the abutting R District, by the erection and 
maintenance of a screening wall or fence along the lot line or lines in common with 
the R District. The lot abuts an R District to the south so a screening fence will be 
required. 

 
The Code requires all parking surfaces be paved with an all-weather surface so as to maintain a 
minimum level of aesthetics, but more importantly to control air-borne particulates like dust and to 
control the tracking of dirt and mud onto public streets. Variance to permit gravel unenclosed off-
street parking (Section 1340); Variance to permit gravel loading areas (Section 1350)    
 
If inclined to approve the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure that the proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area.  
 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) Use Variance to permit a heavy construction contract service 
(Use Unit 25) in the CS district. (Section 710); Variance to permit gravel unenclosed off-street 
parking (Section 1340); and a Variance to permit gravel loading areas (Section 1350) 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Subject to the following condition(s), if any: _________________. 
 
Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar 
to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 
 

CBOA-2965     5.4



AVERY DR

W 21st ST S

W 21
st 

PL

W 22nd ST S

W 23RD ST S

W 25TH ST S

S 5
9T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 5
7T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 6
3R

D 
W 

AV
E

S 6
1S

T W
 AV

E

W 24TH ST S

W 22ND ST S

19-12 17
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2965 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2965     5.5



AVERY DR
W 21st ST S

W 21
st 

PL

S 5
9T

H 
W

 AV
E

W 22ND ST S

19-12 17
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2965 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2965     5.6



AVERY DR

W 21st ST S

W 21
st 

PL

W 22nd ST S

W 23RD ST S

W 25TH ST S

S 5
9T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 5
7T

H 
W

 AV
E

S 6
3R

D 
W 

AV
E

S 6
1S

T W
 AV

E

W 24TH ST S

W 22ND ST S

19-12 17
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2965

Land Use Plan Categories

Downtown

Downtown Neighborhood

Main Street

Mixed-Use Corridor

Regional Center

Town Center

Neighborhood Center

Employment

New Neighborhood

Existing Neighborhood

Park and Open Space

Arkansas River Corridor

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN
NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER

CBOA-2965     5.7



Exhibit "A"

The Applicant requests (1) a Use Variance to permit a Heavy Construction Contract

Service (Use Unit 25) ina CS District, and (2) aYariance of Sections 1340 and 1350 of the Tulsa

County ZoningCode (the "Code") to permit unenclosed off-street parking and loading areas to be

gravel surfaced on property located at2106 S. 59th W. Ave (the "Property").

The Property is located at the southwest comer of West 21't Street and South 59th V/est

Avenue, just east of Chandler Park. To the north of the Property is lM-zoned property abutting

the Arkansas River. Directly east of the Property is zoned CS and consists of a vacant building

that appears to be a former gas station and residences; further east consists of heavily industrialized

properties along both sides of West 21't Street. South of the Property is a vacant lot zoned RS.

The commercial lots to the west of the Property appear to be vacant buildings. The area is currently

subject to significant construction activity associated with the Gilcrease Expressway expansion.

The requested Use Variance is for CDH-Inc., a mechanical construction contractor that

primarily offers commercial and industrial HVAC services for industrial, commercial, and civic

projects in the Tulsa Area. As part of CDH's operations, the south (rear) portion of the Property

behind the existing, 3300 SF buitding, will be utilized as an equipment storage area. The location

of the equipment storage area is shown on the attached conceptual site plan. The storage area is

enclosed by a chain link fence with two gates for access, ingress and egress. Typical equipment

includes trailers, storage tanks, excavation equipment, and trucks.

There are four, paved off-street parking spaces located at the front entrance of the building

which meet the Code's off-street parking requirements for Use lJnit25. The remaining areas of

the Property are gravel, including additional parking at the front of the building and the equipment

storage area.

Despite the smattering of commercial, residential, and industrial zoning districts along

West 21't Street, this stretch of V/est 21't Street along the Arkansas River corridor has long been

an industrial thoroughfare. Gravel parking areas and storage yards are abundant in the area,

including the two adjacent lots to the west of the Property. Based on the development pattern

unique to this area and to the Property, the literal enforcement of the Code results in unnecessary

hardship to the property owner. The proposed use is consistent with the surrounding uses and will

not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the spirit and intent of the Code.

CBOA-2965     5.8



I

Èt

ËE
-l\

ffi#'#

5' U/E

N

A'b
1"=2O'

LEGEND

+ FENCE

M/P MflERINC POIM

B/E BURIED ELECIRIC &
TETEPHONE CÂ9TE

fiSEMENT (fPROXIMAIE

LOùrON)

u/E unLrû ffiEMENT

D/E DUMGE ASEMENI

5t

*@ ËË'i{üiU-;"-.

GENERAL NOTES
ffilS OF AWINCS: 86E0 ON BE æT LINE BEINC S 035'09' E

NO CURRENT NTL€ OPINION OR COMMtrMENT FOR IIIE INSUMCE WÆ FURNISHED

AI NE IME OF SUWÛ, THEREFORE, NO CTRÌFCÀTION IS MDE THAT ALL æEYENIS
ND DEDICÀfIONS OR OTHER ENCUMAWCES ÀRE SHOWN HEREON.

o5'
IHE PROPEW DESCRIBEO HEREON CONIANS 0,76 ACRES, &ORE OR LESS'

flEID WORK COMPLflEO OCIOBÉR 7, 2O1O

FM = FIELo ilreURED coURSE
PUT = RECORÐEO P6l COURSE.
DEsc = DEscRlBEo coURsE,

e0 iJilL

,úÈ

I

Ël

$l
È'
El
I
5l

I
I

I

This survey is provided to show
the dimensions of the ProPertY
only. The structures dePicled
on the survey have been removed
Please refer to ConcePtual Site
PIan for the current building
and site configuration.

I

õÞ
qiñ
qd

PLAT OF- SITFI.VEY
lNvO¡CE No.: SK 10-5J701
CtlENTr KIM MULffiE

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOT ONE (1), BLOCK €IGHI (8). SECOND WESI IULSA VEW ACRES'
A SUADMSION IN IUßA COUNT, SIAIE OF OKUHOMA, ACCORING TO

THE RECORDEO PUT THEREOF, ND KNOWN AS 2106 & 2108 SOUfr
59IH WES AVENUE,

SURVryOR,S STATEMEM

WHITE SURVFYING COMPANY
CËRÎIFICATE OF AUNORIZAIION

NO. CÁ1098
(RENEWI 6/301201 1 )

IAND

SUruryOR OKUHOM NO. ]052

IMI{ITE SIJR, (l colvtPANIL
providinq land sinæ 194095.O0'

9ooo'oo' w 9936 E. 55th Place . Tulsa, OK 74146 '800.262.0682 '918.663.6924 '918.664 8366 fax

I

CBOA-2965     5.9



Conceptual Site Plan

0 0.01

1:737

0.0'! 0.02 mi

0 0.01 O.O2 0.04 km

Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earlhstar Geogrephics, cNES/A¡rbus
DS, LJSDA, LJSGS, AeroGRlD, lGN, and the GIS user community,
Esri, HERE, Garñin, (c) OpenStreetl\rap contributors, Sources: Esri,
HERE, Garmin, lntermap, increment P Corp., GÊBCO, USGS, FAO,
NPS, NRCAN, Geo8ãse, lGN, Kadãster NL, Ordnance Suruey, Esri

411312022,3:04:31 PM

Web AppBuilder fo. ArcGlS
tNcoc 2017CBOA-2965     5.10



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2966 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Nathan Cross   
 
Property Owner: MCI WORLDCOM 
NETWORK SERVICES 
 

 
Action Requested: Use Variance to permit Use Unit 5 (Community Services and 
Similar Uses) to allow an Emergency and Protective Shelter to allow temporary (up 
to 8 months) housing and sponsor placement services for unaccompanied displaced 
minors in an IM district (Section 1205). 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Office    
 
Tract Size: 103.99 acres 
 
Location: 6929 N LAKEWOOD AV E 
 
Present Zoning: IM 
 
Fenceline/Area: North Tulsa County 
 
Land Use Designation: Industrial 
 
 
 

 

CBOA-2966     6.1



IM

AG

IM

AGIM AG

N 
LA

KE
WO

OD
 A

VE

E 66th ST N

21-13 34
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2966

SUBJECT TRACT

CBOA-2966     6.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

TRS:  1334 CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2966 
CZM:  17, 23  CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  

HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

APPLICANT:  Nathan Cross 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Use Variance to permit Use Unit 5 (Community Services and Similar Uses) to allow 
an Emergency and Protective Shelter to allow temporary (up to 8 months) housing and sponsor placement 
services for unaccompanied displaced minors in an IM district (Section 1205). 

LOCATION:  6929 N LAKEWOOD AV E      ZONED:  IM 

FENCELINE: North Tulsa County 

PRESENT USE: Office      TRACT SIZE:  103.99 acres 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  PRT LT 3 BEG NEC TH S601.90 W1448.07 N576.90 NE35 E1422.79 POB BLK 1; 
PRT LT 3 BEG 601.90S NEC TH S1503.70 W1448.78 N1503.70 E 1448.07 POB BLK1; LT 3 LESS 
N2105.60 & LESS BEG SWC TH E49.87 NELY ON CRV LF 809.61 NW80.67 SELY78.14 SWLY ON CRV RT 
832.17 POB BLK 1, CHEROKEE EXPRESSWAY IND DISTRICT, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma 

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  

Subject Property: None Relevant 

Surrounding Property: 

CBOA-2176 September 2005:  The Board approved a Special Exception to permit a private gun 
club, training academy and competition center in an AG zoned district, on property located at 6500 
East 66th Street North. 

ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract abuts IM zoned districts to the west and north. It 
abuts AG zoned districts to the east and south. Surrounding properties include industrial and agricultural 
uses. There is a police academy and gun range south of the subject tract. 

STAFF COMMENTS:  

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Use Variance to permit Use Unit 5 (Community 
Services and Similar Uses) to allow an Emergency and Protective Shelter to allow temporary (up to 
8 months) housing and sponsor placement services for unaccompanied displaced minors in an IM 
district (Section 1205). 

A Use Variance is required as the proposed Emergency and Protective Shelter (Use Unit 5) is a use 
which is not permitted IM district. The request states the shelter will allow temporary housing and 

CBOA-2966     6.3



sponsor placement services for unaccompanied refugee children. Temporary refers to the length of 
time each child could potentially stay in the shelter. 

The applicant has submitted the following statement (Exhibit “B”): 

The property at issue in this request and identified in Exhibit "A" attached to the 
Application (the "subject Property") is an office park in the Cherokee Expressway 
lndustrial District in Tulsa County. The Subject Property consist of four (4) interconnected 
"Mods" that form one complex and an adjacent fifth "Mod" that is a separate building. 
Together, these "Mods" amount to approximately 873,896 square feet of usable floor 
space with ample adjacent parking and internal circulation. The Subject Property was 
originally constructed as an office park beginning in 1985 and has housed office-type 
uses from and since construction. 

The Federal Government has approached the Cherokee Nation about the prospect of 
assisting with the ongoing crisis of unaccompanied refugee children who are seeking 
asylum in the United States from locations such as Ukraine, South America, and 
Afghanistan. As part of that relationship, the Cherokee Nation has been tasked with 
locating a facility that can be repurposed to temporarily provide housing and sponsor 
placement services to these children while they are being relocated from their respective 
countries of origin to their sponsor homes around the country. The children are not placed 
in the local community unless, by coincidence, their sponsor family already resided 
locally. To ensure that the program is in place in time to meet the need for 
accommodations, the Cherokee Nation must move quickly. 

The Subject Property is unique because it provides an existing large square footage of 
interconnected buildings that can quickly and easily be repurposed for the intended use 
in time to accommodate the requirements of this very unique program that is unlike any 
other use in Tulsa County. Further, unlike other similar properties, the Subject Property 
has an ample "campus" and internal circulation infrastructure that is important for traffic 
circulation while being somewhat isolated from more densely populated adjacent uses. 
Given the unique nature of the proposed use and the unique aspects of the Subject 
Property that lend themselves to such use, the Applicant respectfully requests a Specific 
Use Variance to allow Sponsor Placement Services on the Subject Property. 

If inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably 
related to the request to ensure that the current and future use of the subject lot is compatible with 
the surrounding area.   

Sample Motion: 

“Move to _________ (approve/deny) Use Variance to permit Use Unit 5 (Community Services and Similar 
Uses) to allow an Emergency and Protective Shelter to allow temporary (up to 8 months) housing and 
sponsor placement services for unaccompanied displaced minors in an IM district (Section 1205). 

Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any): __________. 

Finding the hardship to be __________. 

Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar to the 
land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would result in 
unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances do not apply 

CBOA-2966     6.4



generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be granted will not cause 
substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and intent of the Code, or the 
Comprehensive Plan.” 

CBOA-2966     6.5



CBOA-2966     6.6



CBOA-2966     6.7



CBOA-2966     6.8



N 
LA

KE
WO

OD
 A

VE

E 66th ST N

21-13 34
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2966 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021
Subject
Tract

CBOA-2966     6.9



N 
LA

KE
WO

OD
 A

VE

E 66th ST N

21-13 34
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2966

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN
INDUSTRIAL

LEGEND
100 Year Floodplain

Unincorporated County Plans
Future Land Use

Rural Residential/Agricultural

Rural Commercial

Parks and Open Space

Public/Semi-Public

Industrial

CBOA-2966     6.10



rtBrt

(Variance Request)

The property at issue in this request and identified in Exhibit "4" attached to the

Application (tne "subject Property") is an office park in the Cherokee Expressway

lndustrial District in TuÍsa County. The Subject Property consist of four (4) interconnected

"Mods" that form one complex and an adjacent fifth "Mod" that is a separate building.

Together, these "Mods" amount to approximately 873,896 square feet of usable floor

spãce with ample adjacent parking and internal circulation. The Subject Property was

originally consiructed as an office park beginning in 1985 and has housed office-type

uses from and since construction.

The Federal Government has approached the Cherokee Nation about the prospect of

assisting w1h the ongoing crisis of unaccompanied refugee children who are seeking

asylum 
-in the Uniteã Stãtes from locations such as Ukraine, South America, and

Afghanistan. As part of that relationship, the Cherokee Nation has been tasked with

loðating a facility that can be repurposed to temporarily provide housing and sponsor

placenient serviðes to these children while they are being relocated from their respective

ðountries of origin to their sponsor homes around the country. The children are not placed

in the local community unless, by coincidence, their sponsor family already resided

locally. To ensure that the program is in place in time to meet the need for

accommodations, the Cherokee Nation must move quickly.

The Subject Property is unique because it provides an existing large square footage of

interconnected buildings that can quickly and easily be repurposed for the intended use

in time to accommodate the requirements of this very unique program that is unlike any

other use in Tulsa County. Further, unlike other similar properties, the Subject Property

has an ample "campus" ãnd internal circulation infrastructure that is important for traffic

circulation while being somewhat isolated from more densely populated adjacent uses.

Given the unique nature of the proposed use and the unique aspects of the Subject
property that lend themselves to such use, the Applicant respectfully requests a Specific

Use Vaiiance to allow Sponsor Placement Services on the Subject Property.
s999309.2

CBOA-2966     6.11



FIGURE 2: SITE PLAN 
Project No. 22-356457.1 

KEY: 
Subject Property 

CBOA-2966     6.12



FIGURE 3: BLDG PLAN 
Project No. 22-356457.1 

 

 

 
 
 

 

KEY: 
Subject Property 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

CBOA-2966     6.13



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2967 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Annette Belmonte   
 
Property Owner: BELMONTE, LEE AND 
ANNETTE 
 

 
Action Requested: Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit requirement 
from 2.1 and the minimum lot area requirement from 2 acres in an AG district; and 
a Variance of the minimum lot width requirement from 150 feet in an AG district to 
permit a lot split (Section 330).  
 
 
Location Map: 

 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 4.77 acres 
 
Location: 17505 S 145 AV E 
 
Present Zoning: AG 
 
Fenceline/Area: Bixby 
 
Land Use Designation: Rural Agriculture 
 
 
 

 

CBOA-2967     7.1



E 171st ST S

AG
AG

RE

AGAGIL

S 1
45

th 
E A

VE

17-14 34
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2967

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Bixby Corporate Limits

CBOA-2967     7.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  7434                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2967 
CZM:  69             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  05/17/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Annette Belmonte 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit requirement from 2.1 and the 
minimum lot area requirement from 2 acres in an AG district; and a Variance of the minimum lot width 
requirement from 150 feet in an AG district to permit a lot split (Section 330).  
 
LOCATION:  17505 S 145 AV E      ZONED:  AG 
 
FENCELINE: Bixby 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  4.77 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  N/2 SW SW NW LESS W30 THEREOF SEC 34 17 14 4.773AC, Tulsa County, State 
of Oklahoma 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:   
 
Subject Property: None relevant 

Surrounding Property:  

CBOA-1862 May 2001:  The Board approved a Variance of lot area from 2 acres to 1.5 acres; a 
Variance of land area from 2.2 acres to 1.5 acres: a Variance of front yard abutting a public street 
from 85’ of required right-of-way to 50’ on Tract 1; and a Variance of lot area from 2 acres to 1.55 
acres; a Variance of the land area from 2.2 acres to 1.55 acres on Tract 2, on property located at 
17482 S. 145th E. Ave. 

 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by AG zoning with what appears to 
be agricultural uses. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 

The applicant is before the Board to request a Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit 
requirement from 2.1 and the minimum lot area requirement from 2 acres in an AG district; and a 
Variance of the minimum lot width requirement from 150 feet in an AG district to permit a lot split 
(Section 330). 
 
The AG district (Section 330, Table 3) requires a minimum lot area of 2 acres, a minimum land area 
per dwelling unit of 2.1 acres, and a minimum lot width of 150 feet.  According to the 
measurements submitted in the site plan, the proposed parcel in the southwest corner of the 
property would be 0.79 acres and the remainder of the parcel would be 3.97 acres. The average lot 
width of the smaller parcel would be 132 feet, so the applicant is requesting a variance of the 
minimum lot width from 150 feet. 

CBOA-2967     7.3



 
The applicant provided the following statement:  
 

“Our adult daughter is going to buy our house and raise her children in same home she was 
raised in. My husband and I plan to move up the cabin in the corner of our land. We want to 
split it off to have it separate the big house – the family across the street did the same thing 
years ago. Family consolidation, you can see in this drawing where a small, less than 1 acre 
was split.” 
 

 
 
Sample Motion: 

 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit 
requirement from 2.1 and the minimum lot area requirement from 2 acres in an AG district; 
and a Variance of the minimum lot width requirement from 150 feet in an AG district to permit 
a lot split (Section 330). 

 
Subject to the following conditions (if any): _________________________. 
 
Subject to the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) _____ of the agenda packet. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are peculiar 
to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan.” 

 
 

CBOA-2967     7.4



CBOA-2967     7.5



CBOA-2967     7.6



CBOA-2967     7.7



E 171st ST S

S 1
45

th 
E A

VE

17-14 34
0 250 500

Feet oCBOA-2967 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2967     7.8



S 1
45

th 
E A

VE

17-14 34
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2967 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2967     7.9



CBOA-2967     7.10



ù
ul

1"='lO0'
INVOICE NO.: lNTEcTl 19-99876
MORTGAGOR; BELMONTE, LEE & ANNETTE

CLIËNT: INTECRITY TITLE & CLOS|No, LLC
ÏTCU FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
19-10081CO

s 88"4J'34" lt/

lîrHITE SI.'R,\¡EYIÌ\TG CO1\ÁP"r\¡\TY
s9s0 EÁsT 65TH prÂCE TUI,SÄ, OÍrntroMÀ ?4140 . (91S) 003_69ã¡t

MORTGAGE INSPECT¡ON
REPORT

LECEND

--*.. FENCE

U/E UTIUTT EÁSEMENT

D/E DRAINACË ÉASEMENI

M,/P MFTEFINO POINT

8/r BURIED ELECTTIC &.IÊLEPHONE 
CABLE

É\SEMÉNÍ
(^PPnOXtMAIE
LOCATION)
EUI!ÞINO UNE
OU1BUIIDINO LINE

B.L,
o,8.1.

Æ@ç¡s:,u::;:;
s 88',4J'12" w

664.26'

rt")
çb

\
a
(o
þ
bs

\
Þb.., s
FxÈñ
ì

È

eu
d8
ü8

¿

400. l0'
S 88:4J,J4'' W

SOUIHI'YEST CORNER
N/2 sV4 sV4 Nty/4
POINT OF EEîINNINÔ
LESS ANO EXCEPT TRACT

ÍHIS PROPERIÍ LIES IN ZONE 'X-UNSHAOED' FLOOD HAZARD AREA
PER F.I,R,M. COMMUNITY PÀNEL NO, 400462 04651. AS LÁSI RËVISED
1 0-1 6- 12,
AND
THIS PRoPERTY uEs ¡N zoNE "X-UNSHADEÐ. FLooO HAZARD AREApER/ F.r,R.M. coMMUNtfr eANEL No. +oo+gz oz+sH,-À5 L¡Sr
REVTSED 04-17-12.

TUTSA COUNTY
tgdÅttlll lrlJ'P

LEGAL DEscRtploN AS pRoVtDED: PLAT N0' N'/A

TllE NORTH HALF OF ÏHE SOU'fllWESî OLARIER OF fHE sourHwEsï ouARfER OF THE NORTHWEST AUAFrÊR (N/2 S\t/4 1sW/4 NW¿/4) OF
:q9llory J!l!I/:louR (34)' rowN-sl'llP.-sEv-Elgç!ry 1r11 ruonnr, ¡*rc; rouRreÈ-'¡¡ trJl e¡sr olruE INDTAN sAsE AND MERtotÀN, TULSAcouNTy, srATE oF oKLAHoMA, AccoRDtNc ro rue u.S, éoveRruuÉrui suRvrr rxEnÊór.' ' - -'
LESS ÀND Ð(CEP"Í
A PARÎ OF ll{É NORTH HALF OF THE SOUIHWESr OUARÎER OÊ '.rHE SOUtHWgSf OUARÌER OF nrE NOmHmSf auAnlER (N/2 swll 9{r,/4
[Y/-1] 9l sscrloN r]lrñrY-FouR.{34}, IgYtsHlP SEVE¡\ftEN itr¡ rvonm, nenã-e iöüàrrm-ir+¡ EAsl oF l}je t}lflAr\¡ aAsE AND tERlotAN,rÜtsA couNlY' srATE 0F oKtAHoMA, ACCoRDTNG ro n¡r u.È.'eovenÑunt¡ sunvey iù-enrÙi.'sãÑo üoR,Ë-pA¡miür,fn"-i b¡scnrøeD ¡_sFOLLOì|9, l0 lTÌfr

8W/4 &\t/f A DtsrANcË 0F 264.00 FEF[;
flrgNcE s 46'08'J0' E A DISTANC€ 0F 372,29 FÊFr;
ÎHENCË S ð8'4s'34" W ALoNô lrJÈ SOüTH UNE Or SA0 N/2 Sw/A sfr/4 Nw//4 Á ÐtSrANtE oF 264.00 FËEr TO nÉ polNï 0F BÉc¡NNtNç.

gUg^IECÌ.To.-À-ÂËHI--OF:WAY ËASEMEï¡Ì oVER Ît'lÊ WEST 25 Feg rxEREoF, AND THE NoRTH 50 FErr THEREoF, AND KNol,yN As f7505SOUIH l45TH Ê^Sl.AVENIJE.

T
17
N

5025' RteHr-oF-vAY
ASEMENT

RIêH|;OF-'YAY
ASEMENT \

SUtLOtNó
CANCRETT

ú'/3[
t sroRY
88tCK &

FRÁiIE
DIIELLWE

gRto6E

ë4ñ
POnr

POOL

FN¿UE
NOT ON

0.
M/P

w

,nHrrE suRvE/rNG coMpANy, AN oKUAHovA coRpor{ATro',-4^g-'P¡!!YFt9'ü;Ë riqlêItYåHAsroNAL r¡N' su'v'roR, 
'N'ER 

cERrRcAïE oF ÀurH'RrzAïoN#cA1oso (RENEìIAL DAIE: JUNE so,_z_q_l),-gq sEnÉev sr¡iË nùäìñ_.o_uiiÃ0ËËiß¡ôñÃL-öËiñiôñîHË ABovE rNspEcïroN pLAr sHows rHE Dy{ELSNB

å: b,o"lïP "$,fI^t,rlÍ11.å,3,ç:Sfl"3i*1$ lL r"^,:H'S*' q11il :ti. .mj¡'..'.U¡^il à_iriúi'iiË, Ã¡¡ö iiËnlirii-'ñd "eücñijióir"vd¡ns 
irrsn¡oN

CBOA-2967     7.11



 

 

Case Number: CBOA-2968 
 
Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

 
Case Report Prepared by: 
 
Robi Jones 
 

 
Owner and Applicant Information: 
 
Applicant: Mickey Ronnell Traylor   
 
Property Owner: TRAYLOR,  MICKEY 
RONNELL 
 

 
Action Requested: Special Exception to allow a duplex in an RS district (Sec. 410, 
Table 1); Variance to allow three dwelling units on a single lot of record in the RS 
district (Sec. 208); and a Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement 
(Section 1340.D). 
 
 
Location Map: 

 
 
Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 
Additional Information: 
 
Present Use: Residential    
 
Tract Size: 0.46 acres 
 
Location: 7107 N TRENTON AV E 
 
Present Zoning: RS 
 
Fenceline/Area: Turley 
 
Land Use Designation: Rural 
Residential/Agriculture 
 
 
 

 

CBOA-2968     8.1



RS

AG

IL

AG

RS

RS

RE

IM

AG RMH

RS

CS

AG

IL

CS

CS

CG

AG

CS

CS

CG

IL

AGRSCHCH

CS

RS

!(11

E 76th ST N

E 66th ST N

N 
PE

OR
IA

 A
VE

N 
VIC

TO
R 

AV
E

N 
TR

EN
TO

N 
AV

E

E 73RD ST N

E 75TH ST N

E 71ST ST N

E 72ND ST N

E 68TH ST N

E 69TH ST N

E 67TH ST N

E 75TH PL N
N 

OW
AS

SO
 P

L

N 
UT

IC
A A

VE

E 73RD ST N

E 69TH ST N

21-13 31
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2968

SUBJECT TRACT

CBOA-2968     8.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
TRS:  1331                                                            CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2968 
CZM:  16             CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  
  
HEARING DATE:  05/17/2022 1:30 PM 
 
APPLICANT:  Mickey Ronnell Traylor 
 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Special Exception to allow a duplex in an RS district (Sec. 410, Table 1); Variance to 
allow three dwelling units on a single lot of record in the RS district (Sec. 208); and a Variance from the all-
weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
 
LOCATION:  7107 N TRENTON AV E      ZONED:  RS 
 
AREA: Turley 
 
PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  0.46 acres 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  W135 S/2 LT 7 BLK 8, GOLDEN HILL ADDN, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma 
 
RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  None 
 
ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract is surrounded by RS zoning and residential uses. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
The applicant is requesting a Special Exception to allow a duplex in an RS district (Sec. 410, Table 1); 
Variance to allow three dwelling units on a single lot of record in the RS district (Sec. 208); and a Variance 
from the all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D).  
 
A Special Exception is required as the duplex use is not permitted by right in the RS district because of 
potential adverse affect, but which if controlled in the particular instance as to its relationship to the 
neighborhood and to the general welfare, may be permitted.  The duplex use must be found to be 
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Additionally, the Tulsa County Zoning Code does not permit more than one dwelling on a lot located in an 
RS (Residential Single-Family) district. For this reason, the applicant is asking to allow three dwelling units 
on a single lot of record. The parcel is 0.46 acres in size. According to the Tulsa County Assessor’s website, 
both houses were built in 1930. They would be considered non-conforming but the addition to the duplex 
requires the property to be in compliance with Tulsa County Zoning Code. 
 
According to the site plan submitted by the applicant, the existing duplex is being remodeled and there will 
be a new addition on the east side of it. Parking for the existing residence will remain gravel so the 
applicant is requesting a Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement. 
 
If inclined to approve the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably related to 
the request to ensure that the proposed use and future development of the subject property is compatible 
with and non-injurious to the surrounding area.  
 

CBOA-2968     8.3



 
Sample Motion: 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to allow a duplex in an RS district (Sec. 410, 
Table 1);  
 

Approved per conceptual plan on page _______ of the agenda packet.  
 

Subject to the following conditions (including time limitation, if any): __________. 
 
Finding the Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will not 
be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare.” 

 
 
“Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance to allow three dwelling units on a single lot of record in the 
RS district (Sec. 208); and a Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement (Section 1340.D). 
 

Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) ______ of the agenda packet. 
 
Subject to the following conditions, if any: _______________________________. 
 
Finding the hardship to be __________. 
 
Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances which are peculiar to 
the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code would 
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances 
do not apply generally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be 
granted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and 
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan.” 
 
 

CBOA-2968     8.4



!(11

E 76th ST N

E 66th ST N

N 
PE

OR
IA

 A
VE

N 
VIC

TO
R 

AV
E

N 
TR

EN
TO

N 
AV

E

E 73RD ST N

E 75TH ST N

E 71ST ST N

E 72ND ST N

E 68TH ST N

E 69TH ST N

E 67TH ST N

E 75TH PL N
N 

OW
AS

SO
 P

L

N 
UT

IC
A A

VE

E 73RD ST N

E 69TH ST N

21-13 31
0 300 600

Feet oCBOA-2968 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021
Subject
Tract

CBOA-2968     8.5



N 
TR

EN
TO

N A
VE

E 71ST ST N

E 72ND ST N

21-13 31
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2968 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021
Subject
Tract

CBOA-2968     8.6



7;¿
ræ

:E
ll.ol'tr

þrE
tltG

tÞ
Ð

Ë
$aË

'

üE
B

ß

on¡!'Ê
t,v*v

:ûoncR
g¡g,on

'À
åsilÁ

LT

E
{S

nil€
xÊ

$lD
glçq G

A
ftA

gE

P
R

O
Þ

(N
€D

A
f'O

ffJO
lI

,E
Q

¡lpltF
fÉ

oF

,*,$P
ftT

sfüvÊ
l¡rraY

ÀF&
,

:ozl-l¡Jl¡J
üt-t/t¡-lnF

tl
r\

birfri,
F

l

Fct
f'É

.
Irl
tt{

152'0"
N

O
R

T
H

 T
R

E
N

T
O

N

CBOA-2968     8.7



Case Number: CBOA-2972 

Hearing Date: 05/31/2022 1:30 PM 

Case Report Prepared by: 

Robi Jones 

Owner and Applicant Information: 

Applicant: Sherry Barbour   

Property Owner: COCKRUM, VERNON J 

Action Requested: Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use Unit 2) in an 
RS district (Section 410); Variance of the all-weather parking surface requirement 
(Sec.1340.D). 

Location Map: 

Tulsa County Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

Additional Information: 

Present Use: Residential    

Tract Size: 0.75 acres 

Location: 524 N 49 AV W 

Present Zoning: RS 

Fenceline/Area: W. Central Tulsa 

Land Use Designation: Rural 
Residential/Agriculture 

CBOA-2972     9.1



N 
48

TH
 W

 AV
E

RS RS-3

AG

RS-3

CH

CS

AG MPD-2

£¤64
!(51

W EDISON ST
N 

49
th 

W 
AV

E

W ARCHER ST

N 
46

TH
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST
W BRADY ST

N 
47

TH
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

N 45TH W AVE

N 
50

TH
 W

 AV
E

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

19-12 05
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2972

SUBJECT TRACT

LEGEND
Tulsa Corporate Limits

CBOA-2972     9.2



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2972 
CASE REPORT PREPARED BY:  Robi Jones  

TRS:  9205
CZM:  35 

HEARING DATE:  05/31/2022 1:30 

PM APPLICANT:  Sherry Barbour 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use Unit 2) in an RS district (Section 
410); Variance of the all-weather parking surface requirement (Sec.1340.D). 

LOCATION:  524 N 49 AV W      ZONED:  RS 

FENCELINE: West Central Tulsa County 

PRESENT USE: Residential      TRACT SIZE:  0.75 acres 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  TR.13 BG.24.75 S.& 1200 E.NW COR. LT 1 OR NE NE TH. S.330E.98.4 N.330 
W.99. 25 TO BG.SEC.5-19-12, Tulsa County, State of Oklahoma

RELEVANT PREVIOUS ACTIONS:  

Subject Property:  

CBOA-2885 May 2021:  The Board approved a Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use 
Unit 2) in an RS district; and a Variance from the all-weather parking surface requirement, subject 
to the conceptual plan 3.16 of the agenda packet. The portable bathrooms are not to be located 
behind the stands. There is to be a privacy panel screening between the stands to shield the car 
lights from the neighboring property. The gravel lot is to be as required by the County. The hours of 
operation are to be June 15th to July 5th from 10:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., except on July 4th – July 5th, 
the hours are to be 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 Midnight. The approval will have a one-year time limit, May 
2022, on property located at 524 North 49th West Avenue. 

CBOA-2705 July 2018:  The Board approved a Special Exception to allow a fireworks stand (Use 
Unit 2) in an RS district. There is to be no smoking on the fireworks stand site. There is to be no 
parking behind to the west of the fireworks stand, parking is to be done in the front of the fireworks 
stand or across the street. There is to be no discharge of fireworks on the site. The hours of 
operation are to be June 17 to June 26 from 9:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m., June 27th to June 30th 9:00 
a.m. to 10:00 p.m., and July 1st to July 4th from 8:00 a.m. to 12:00 midnight. The approval will have
a two-year time limit, July 2020, on property located at 524 North 49th West Avenue.

CBOA-2262 May 2007:  The Board approved a Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand in an 
AG district with condition for the hours of operation to be 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m., and to midnight 
for three nights before July 4th for a period of 5 years; and approved a Variance of paving 
requirement to permit a temporary gravel driving surface, on property located at 524 North 49th 
Avenue West. 

CBOA-2972     9.3



CBOA-2046 July 2003:  The Board approved a Special Exception to allow a fireworks stand in an RS 
district for two years; and a Variance of the hard surface parking to allow gravel and grass, on 
property located at 524 North 49th West Avenue. 

CBOA-1957 May 2002:  The Board denied a Special Exception to allow a fireworks stand (Use Unit 
2) in an RS district; and a Variance of Section 1340 to allow parking on grass, on property located
at 524 North 49th West Avenue.

ANALYSIS OF SURROUNDING AREA:  The subject tract abuts Tulsa Corporate Limits to the north and east; 
and RS zoned residential properties to the south and west. 

STAFF COMMENTS:  

The applicant is before the Board to request a Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use Unit 2) in 
an RS district (Section 410); Variance of the all-weather parking surface requirement (Sec.1340.D). 

The site plan submitted by the applicant proposes three 24-foot firework stands on the northern portion of 
the parcel. A Special Exception is required as the proposed fireworks stand is a use which is not permitted 
by right in the RS district because of potential adverse affect, but which if controlled in the particular 
instance as to its relationship to the area and to the general welfare, may be permitted.   

The Code requires all parking surfaces be paved with an all-weather surface so as to maintain a minimum 
level of aesthetics, but more importantly to control air-borne particulates like dust and to control the 
tracking of dirt and mud onto public streets.  The applicant has requested a variance to permit a gravel 
parking area in a 70’ x 30’ space south of the fireworks stands. This is different than the parking area 
previously brought before the Board.  The goal was to have the parking lot located on the portion of the 
property located in Tulsa County. 

For clarification, the western portion of the property is located in unincorporated Tulsa County and the 
eastern portion of the property is located in the City of Tulsa. Sometime in the last year, the maps were 
updated to reflect a City of Tulsa Annexation that happened in 1974.  

Fireworks stands previously approved by the Board within the County are normally a temporary use 
operating for less than a few weeks in a given year.  The applicant did not submit proposed hours of 
operation or dates the fireworks stands would be open. The client did provide some additional information 
including a request for a 5-year time limit (see attached on page with the proposed site plan).  

If inclined to approve, the Board may consider any conditions it deems necessary and reasonably related 
to the request to ensure that the fireworks stand is compatible with the surrounding area.  

Sample Motion: 

Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Special Exception to permit a fireworks stand (Use Unit 2) in an 
RS district (Section 410);  

Subject to the following conditions (if any, – it could include a time limit, hours of operation, 
and/or conceptual plans): __________. 

Finding the Special Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will 
not be injurious to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

CBOA-2972     9.4



Move to _________ (approve/deny) a Variance of the all-weather parking surface requirement 
(Sec.1340.D). 

Finding the hardship to be __________. 

Subject to the following conditions (including time limit, or conceptual plans) if any): 
__________. 

Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances, which are 
peculiar to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of 
the Code would result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional 
conditions or circumstances do not apply generally to other property in the same use 
district; and that the variance to be granted will not cause substantial detriment to the 
public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

CBOA-2972     9.5



CBOA-2972     9.6



CBOA-2972     9.7



CBOA-2972     9.8



CBOA-2972     9.9



CBOA-2972     9.10



CBOA-2972     9.11



CBOA-2972     9.12



CBOA-2972     9.13



CBOA-2972     9.14



CBOA-2972     9.15



CBOA-2972     9.16



CBOA-2972     9.17



CBOA-2972     9.18



CBOA-2972     9.19



CBOA-2972     9.20



CBOA-2972     9.21



N 
48

TH
 W

 AV
E

£¤64
!(51

W EDISON ST
N 

49
th 

W 
AV

E

W ARCHER ST

N 
46

TH
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST
W BRADY ST

N 
47

TH
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

N 45TH W AVE

N 
50

TH
 W

 AV
E

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

19-12 05
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2972 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2972     9.22



W EDISON ST

N 
49

th 
W 

AV
E

W EASTON ST

19-12 05
0 50 100

Feet oCBOA-2972 Note:  Graphic overlays may not precisely
align with physical features on the ground.

Aerial Photo Date: 2020/2021

Subject
Tract

CBOA-2972     9.23



N 
48

TH
 W

 AV
E

£¤64
!(51

W EDISON ST
N 

49
th 

W 
AV

E

W ARCHER ST

N 
46

TH
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST
W BRADY ST

N 
47

TH
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

N 45TH W AVE

N 
50

TH
 W

 AV
E

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

W EASTON ST

N 
53

RD
 W

 AV
E

W CAMERON ST

N 
51

ST
 W

 AV
E

19-12 05
0 200 400

Feet oCBOA-2972

SUBJECT TRACT
LAND USE PLAN 
RURAL RESIDENTIAL/AGRICULTURAL

LEGEND
Unincorporated County Plans
Future Land Use

Rural Residential/Agricultural

Rural Commercial

Parks and Open Space

Public/Semi-Public

Industrial

CBOA-2972     9.24



CBOA-2972     9.25



CBOA-2972     9.26



CBOA-2972     9.27



CBOA-2972     9.28



CBOA-2972     9.29



 

85 ft 
from 
stands 
to the 
owner’s 
home   

Proposed to 
move parking 
to the south 
side of the 
stands  

70 X 30  

CBOA-2972     9.30


	2022-05-31-CBOA-Agenda.pdf
	CBOA-2960.pdf
	CBOA-2960.pdf
	CBOA-2960.pdf
	CBOA-2960.pdf
	CBOA-2960_LandUsePlan.pdf
	CBOA-2960.pdf
	CBOA-2960(A).pdf




	CBOA-2963.pdf
	CBOA-2963.pdf
	CBOA-2963.pdf
	CBOA-2963.pdf
	CBOA-2963(AC).pdf
	CBOA-2963(A).pdf
	site plan.pdf



	CBOA-2964.pdf
	CBOA-2964.pdf
	CBOA-2964.pdf
	CBOA-2964 site plan_001.pdf
	CBOA-2964.pdf
	CBOA-2964(a).pdf
	CBOA-2964(ac).pdf



	CBOA-2965.pdf
	CBOA-2965.pdf
	CBOA-2965.pdf
	exhibits_001.pdf
	CBOA-2965.pdf
	CBOA-2965.pdf
	CBOA-2965_LandUsePlan.pdf
	CBOA-2965.pdf
	CBOA-2965(ac).pdf
	CBOA-2965(a).pdf





	CBOA-2966.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-2176.pdf
	CBOA-2966.pdf
	2335_001.pdf
	CBOA-2966_LandUsePlan.pdf
	CBOA-2966.pdf
	CBOA-2966(a).pdf
	Verizon Site Plan PCA(6004660.1).pdf


	CBOA-2967.pdf
	2460_001.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	CBOA-2967.pdf
	CBOA-2967.pdf
	CBOA-2967(ac).pdf
	CBOA-2967(a).pdf
	2330_001.pdf

	Pages from CBOA-1862.pdf


	CBOA-2968.pdf
	CBOA-2968.pdf
	2331_001.pdf
	CBOA-2968.pdf
	CBOA-2968(ac).pdf
	CBOA-2968(a).pdf


	CBOA-2972.pdf
	CBOA-2972.pdf
	3150_001.pdf
	West Tulsa Layout Version 2 parking  2022.pdf
	CBOA-2972.pdf
	CBOA-2972.pdf
	CBOA-2972(ac).pdf
	CBOA-2972(a).pdf

	Pages from CBOA-2885.pdf
	Pages from CBOA-1957.pdf

	CBOA-2972(LUP).pdf




